
AGENDA 
MAPLEWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, APRIL 9, 2024 @ 7:00 P.M. 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 7601 MANCHESTER ROAD, MAPLEWOOD, MO 63143 
 OR VIA TELECONFERENCE 

 

Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89452395834?pwd=SytBUTE0WXBlOUlPQnU0WjhqaFRMZz09 
Passcode: 113226 
Dial in: (312) 626-6799 
Webinar ID: 894 5239 5834 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Land Acknowledgement 
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

4. Roll Call 
 

5. Motion to Excuse Councilmembers 
 

6. Approval of the Council Agenda 
 

7. Public hearing to hear citizens’ comments on a request by the City to amend Chapter 50, Traffic 
and Motor Vehicles, Article III – Additional Traffic Regulations, to add a new Section 50-96, 
Pedestrians’ Right-of-Way, of the Maplewood Code of Ordinances   

 
8. Approval of the March 26, 2024 City Council meeting minutes 

 
9. Announcements 

 
10. Public Forum 

 
11. Council Communication 

 
12. Mayor’s Report 

 
13. City Attorney’s Report 

 
14. City Manager’s Report  

 
15. Special Business District Tax Advisory Commission Report 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89452395834?pwd=SytBUTE0WXBlOUlPQnU0WjhqaFRMZz09


16. A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Missouri, authorizing the City 
Manager to purchase thirteen (13) Rhombus R510 Bullet public safety cameras from goINET 
in the amount of twenty-nine thousand nine-hundred seventy-five dollars ($29,975.00) 

 
17. A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Missouri, authorizing the City 

Manager to accept the bid of PlayPower LT Farmington, Inc. for the renovation of Central 
Park in the amount of four hundred forty-one thousand three-hundred sixty-five dollars and 
sixty-eight cents ($441,365.68) 

  
18. A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Missouri, authorizing the City 

Manager to accept the bid of Midwest Pool and Court Co. to perform the MFAC Filter Tanks 
Project in the amount of thirty-five thousand six hundred twenty-two dollars ($35,622) with a 
lateral line contingency of twelve thousand one-hundred twenty-two dollars ($12,122) 

  
19. A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Missouri, authorizing the City 

Manager to accept the bid of STL Glazing, LLC. in the amount of twenty-one thousand two-
hundred ninety dollars ($21,290) for replacement windows for the Public Works garage  

 
20. A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Missouri, requesting an 

assessment of investment funds remaining from the City’s dissolved Police and Fire Pension 
Trust Fund 
 

21. An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Missouri, terminating tax 
increment financing within the Cambridge Commons Redevelopment Area; dissolving the 
Special Allocation Fund (Cambridge Commons Redevelopment); and authorizing certain 
other actions relating thereto 
 

22. Bill 6249, an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Missouri, amending 
the Maplewood Code of Ordinances, Chapter 50 – Traffic and Motor Vehicles, Article III. – 
Additional Traffic Regulations, to add a new section 50-96, Pedestrians’ Right-Of-Way in 
Crosswalks 
 

23. Old Business 
 

24. Motion to hold a Closed Session, if needed, to discuss matters relating to litigation, legal 
actions and/or communication from the City Attorney as provided for in Section 
610.021(1)RSMO. and/or specifications for competitive bidding under Section 610.021(11) 
and/or sealed bids and related documents and sealed proposals and related documents under 
Section 610.021(11) and/or personnel matters under Section 610.021(13)RSMO. and/or 
employee matters under Section 610.021(3)RSMO. and/or real estate matters under Section 
610.021(2)RSMO. and/or documents related to a negotiated contract under Section 
610.021(12)RSMO    
 

25. Adjournment  



 
City 
of Maplewood 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7601 Manchester Road 
Maplewood, MO 63143 
(314) 645•3600 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE   

Maplewood City Council will hold a public hearing on April 9, 24 at 7:00 p.m. 
in the City Hall Council Chambers, 7601 Manchester Rd., Maplewood, MO 
63143, to hear citizen’s comments on a request to amend Chapter 50, Traffic 
and Motor Vehicles, Article III – Additional Traffic Regulations, to add a new 
Section 50-96, Pedestrians’ Right-of-Way, of the Maplewood Code of 
Ordinances.   

 



  
 
 
 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 
 
 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD 
AT 7601 MANCHESTER ROAD 

 
MARCH 26, 2024 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m., Mayor Knapper presiding.  
 
LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Mayor Knapper acknowledged that this meeting is being held on 
traditional lands of the Kickapoo, Osage, Miami, Iroquois and Great Sioux Nation people. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was recited. 
 
ON ROLL CALL, the following members were PRESENT: Mayor Knapper, Councilmember Coriell, 
Councilmember Garcia, Councilmember Homa, Councilmember Faulkingham, Councilmember Mattox 
and Councilmember Page.  
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE COUNCILMEMBER: None. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA: Councilmember Faulkingham motioned to approve, 
seconded by Councilmember Homa, which motion received the approval of the Council. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TO HEAR CITIZEN COMMENTS ON A REQUEST BY THE CITY TO 
AMEND CHAPTER 56 – ZONING, DIVISION 2. SR SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 
SECTIONS 56-73 (A), 56-73 (B), 56-73 (E), 56-73 (G), SR DISTRICT PARKING, AND 56-1061 (A) 
(1):   
 
Mary Killian was concerned the proposed amendments would not allow her to make improvements to 
her house that would allow her to age in place. 
 
Jim Breihan stated he was a member of the Plan & Zoning Commission and he was in favor of the 
proposed amendments. 
 
Ray Crader stated he was concerned with the proposed amendments because they may not allow him to 
add on to his house which could force him to move if he wanted to add on to support his growing family.  
He also said if a fire were to burn down a home, it would be difficult for a builder to rebuild a home with 
a small footprint.  He said he agreed with the intent of the ordinance but additional provisions should 
be added prior to approval. 
 
Elizabeth Nathanson expressed transparency concerns and requested this be tabled until the public had 
a chance to review the proposed amendments. 



 
Shabnam Nouraie expressed concern regarding the 300-foot surrounding home calculation requirement 
and mentioned it would be unfair if a resident could not expand due to their proximity near smaller 
homes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TO HEAR CITIZEN’S COMMENTS ON A REQUEST BY THE CITY TO 
TEMPORARILY SUSPEND ENFORCEMENT OF SECTION 12-117, ADOPTION OF PROPERTY 
MAINTENANCE CODE SUBSECTION 302.4, AND SECTION 54-56 OF THE MAPLEWOOD 
CODE OF ORDINANCES TO PROMOTE “NO MOW APRIL” FROM APRIL 1-30, 2024 
 
Ray Crader spoke in favor of the proposed amendments. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE REVISED FEBRUARY 13, 2024 CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES:  
Councilmember Faulkingham motioned to approve, seconded by Councilmember Homa, which motion 
received the approval of the Council. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 12, 2024 CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES: Councilmember 
Faulkingham motioned to approve, seconded by Councilmember Homa, which motion received the 
approval of the Council. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Councilmember Garcia mentioned the Coffee Crawl event.    
 
PUBLIC FORUM: Corinne Char provided background on the thefts of her Israeli flag and banner from 
her front yard. She mentioned she and her family do not feel safe or respected as Jewish people in 
Maplewood. She requested the City Council use the term “anti-Semitism” in their condemnation of these 
acts.   
 
Cindy Meredith expressed concern regarding the SR District amendments being considered and said this 
issue should be promoted more so residents are aware of what is being proposed. She also expressed 
concern regarding the Prop J language. 
 
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION: Councilmembers Mattox and Page expressed sympathies to Corinne 
Char for what she is going through. Councilmember Page mentioned he would be voting no on the SR 
District amendments. Councilmember Garcia said additional provisions should be considered for the SR 
District amendments and to address Cindy Meredith’s Prop J ballot language concern, she stated the 
word count is limited which is why the language was drafted in this manner. Councilmember Coriell 
agreed that additional provisions should be made to the SR District amendments, specifically regarding 
renovations. 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT: Mayor Knapper expressed sympathies to Corinne Char for what she is going 
through and added it is not ok to be experiencing harassment of any kind. Mayor Knapper recognized 
March 31st as Transgender Day of Visibility and students in the MRH School District. Mayor Knapper 
addressed a resident comment from Patty Nouraie at the prior Council Meeting regarding the City 
Manager hire being cronyism, stating the comment was a lie. She then detailed the City Manager hire 
process which she thanked Councilmember Faulkingham for spearheading. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT: None. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: City Manager Withycombe updated the Council on the collective 
bargaining process with the firefighters and related ordinance amendments that will be coming in the 
near future. She also discussed Board and Commission vacancies. 
 
 



R-24-8, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, 
APPOINTING RENEE FARMAR TO THE HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION was introduced. It 
was moved by Councilmember Faulkingham, duly seconded by Councilmember Homa, to approve this 
resolution, which motion received the following roll call vote: Ayes, Mayor Knapper, Councilmembers 
Coriell, Faulkingham, Garcia, Homa, Mattox and Page.  Nays, none. 
 
R-24-9, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, 
APPOINTING KATE HANNAN TO THE SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION was introduced. It was 
moved by Councilmember Faulkingham, duly seconded by Councilmember Homa, to approve this 
resolution, which motion received the following roll call vote: Ayes, Mayor Knapper, Councilmembers 
Coriell, Faulkingham, Garcia, Homa, Mattox and Page.  Nays, none. 
 
R-24-10, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, 
MISSOURI, APPOINTING DOUGLAS DELONG TO THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND 
HOUSING BOARD OF APPEALS was introduced. It was moved by Councilmember Faulkingham, 
duly seconded by Councilmember Homa, to approve this resolution, which motion received the 
following roll call vote: Ayes, Mayor Knapper, Councilmembers Coriell, Faulkingham, Garcia, Homa, 
Mattox and Page.  Nays, none. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, 
AMENDING THE MAPLEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 34 – OFFENSES, 
ARTICLE VI. – OFFENSES AGAINST PUBLIC PEACE, SECTION 34-171 – HATE OFFENSES, 
TO ADD STEALING was given its first reading. It was moved by Councilmember Faulkingham, duly 
seconded by Councilmember Homa, that the Bill be moved to its second reading, which motion received 
the approval, by voice vote, of the Council. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, 
AMENDING THE MAPLEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 2 – ADMINISTRATION, 
ARTICLE V. – REVENUE AND FINANCE, DIVISION 2 – PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS, 
SECTION 32-287 – FORMAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING, CHAPTER 42 – STREETS, SIDEWALKS 
AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES, ARTICLE III. – IMPROVEMENTS, SECTION 42-61 – 
CONTRACT FOR IMPROVEMENT, ETC.– GENERALLY, CHAPTER 42 – STREETS, 
SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES, ARTICLE V. – SIDEWALKS, SECTION 42-128 – 
SAME–BIDS; ESTIMATES, CHAPTER 42 – STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC 
PLACES, ARTICLE VI. – SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, SECTION 42-152 – RESOLUTION AND 
PUBLICATION REQUIRED, TO SET REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL CONTRACTORS BIDDING ON 
PUBLICLY FUNDED PROJECTS was given its first reading. It was moved by Councilmember 
Faulkingham, duly seconded by Councilmember Homa, that the Bill be moved to its second reading, 
which motion received the approval, by voice vote, of the Council. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, 
AMENDING THE MAPLEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 50 – TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, ARTICLE III. – ADDITIONAL TRAFFIC REGULATIONS, TO ADD A NEW 
SECTION 50-96, PEDESTRIANS’ RIGHT-OF-WAY IN CROSSWALKS was given its first reading. 
It was moved by Councilmember Faulkingham, duly seconded by Councilmember Homa, that the Bill 
be moved to its second reading, which motion received the approval, by voice vote, of the Council. 
 
BILL 6045, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, 
MISSOURI, AMENDING THE MAPLEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 56  – 
ZONING,  SECTION 56-73 – USE REGULATIONS, SUBSECTIONS (A) LOT SIZE STANDARDS, 
(B) FRONT YARD SETBACK, (E) HEIGHT AND BULK STANDARDS, (G) PARKING, AND 
SECTION 56-1061 NON-CONFORMING LOTS OF RECORD (A) RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS, 
SUBSECTION (1), TO BRING LOT SIZE AND SETBACK STANDARDS INTO ALIGNMENT 



WITH EXISTING AVERAGES AND TO PRESERVE LOCAL NEIGHBORHOOD 
CHARACTERISTICS AND HOUSING AFFORDABILITY was given its third and final reading. It was 
moved by Councilmember Faulkingham, duly seconded by Councilmember Homa, that Bill No. 6045 be 
approved, which motion received the following roll call vote: Ayes, None.  Nays, Mayor Knapper, 
Councilmembers Coriell, Faulkingham, Garcia, Homa, Mattox and Page.  Bill 6045 was not approved. 
 
BILL 6046, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, 
MISSOURI, TEMPORARILY SUSPENDING ENFORCEMENT OF CHAPTER 12, SECTION 12-117 
– ADOPTION OF PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE, SECTION 302.4 WEEDS, AND CHAPTER 
54, SECTION 54-56 – CUTTING REQUIRED OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO 
THE GROWTH OF GRASS OR WEEDS TO PROMOTE “NO MOW APRIL” FROM APRIL 1 – 30, 
2024, IN SUPPORT OF POLLINATORS AND WILDLIFE HABITAT was given its third and final 
reading. It was moved by Councilmember Faulkingham, duly seconded by Councilmember Homa, that Bill No. 
6046 be approved, which motion received the following roll call vote: Ayes, Mayor Knapper, Councilmembers 
Coriell, Faulkingham, Garcia, Homa, Mattox and Page.  Nays, none.  Bill 6046 was approved by the City 
Council as Ordinance Number 6040. 
 
BILL 6047, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, 
MISSOURI, RATIFYING RESOLUTION R24-2 AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, WITH THE CITIES OF BRENTWOOD, CLAYTON, AND 
RICHMOND HEIGHTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF JOINING THE CENTRAL CORE FIRE 
TRAINING CENTER COMMISSION was given its third and final reading. It was moved by Councilmember 
Faulkingham, duly seconded by Councilmember Homa, that Bill No. 6047 be approved, which motion received 
the following roll call vote: Ayes, Mayor Knapper, Councilmembers Coriell, Faulkingham, Garcia, Homa, Mattox 
and Page.  Nays, none.  Bill 6047 was approved by the City Council as Ordinance Number 6041. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: None. 
 
MOTION TO HOLD A CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS MATTERS RELATING TO LITIGATION, 
LEGAL ACTIONS AND/OR COMMUNICATION FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY AS PROVIDED 
FOR IN SECTION 610.021(1)RSMO. AND/OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR COMPETITIVE BIDDING 
UNDER SECTION 610.021(11) AND/OR SEALED BIDS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS AND 
SEALED PROPOSALS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS UNDER SECTION 610.021(11) AND/OR 
PERSONNEL MATTERS UNDER SECTION 610.021(13)RSMO. AND/OR EMPLOYEE MATTERS 
UNDER SECTION 610.021(3)RSMO. AND/OR REAL ESTATE MATTERS UNDER SECTION 
610.021(2)RSMO. AND/OR DOCUMENTS RELATED TO A NEGOTIATED CONTRACT UNDER 
SECTION 610.021(12)RSMO: None.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Approved this 9th day of April, 2024 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 ___________________________________ 
 Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 



Memorandum 
 
To: Mayor & City Council 
From: Amber Withycombe, City Manager 
Date: April 4, 2024 
Re: City Manager’s Report 
 
 
Zoning Ordinance Revision Public Engagement  
The Plan & Zoning Commission met on April 1 to discuss revisions to the proposed SR District 
Lot Amendment ordinance previously rejected by the Council at its March 26 meeting. To 
increase public engagement in this revision process, where Commission members will be 
proposing alternative approaches to lot size, height, and bulk standards for existing structures, 
among other adjustments, the Commission encourages public attendance at its next regular 
meeting. Scheduled for Monday, May 6 at 6 pm in Council Chambers, this meeting aims to 
solicit input from residents and also provide an opportunity for the Commission to share details 
about its research and previous discussions, as well as offer visual models of how the proposed 
changes would impact properties. The meeting packet will be posted on the City’s website on 
Friday, May 3 at 
https://www.cityofmaplewood.com/government/resources/planning___zoning_commission.php. 
The City will promote the meeting on Facebook, as well. 
 
Boards and Commissions Application Now Being Accepted 
The City invites applications for board and commission seats with terms beginning on July 1. 
Residents interested in serving are encouraged to apply online at 
https://cityofmaplewoodmo.rja.revize.com/forms/2834 or download a fillable PDF from 
https://cms7files1.revize.com/cityofmaplewoodmo/Document_center/Government/Board%20&
%20Commissions/Boards%20and%20Commissions%20Application_2024_PRINT-fillable.pdf. 
Paper forms can be mailed to or dropped off at City Hall.  
 
Current board and commission members with terms expiring on June 30 will receive an email 
reminding them to reapply if they are interested in continuing their service. Previous applicants 
will be contacted to confirm their continued interest in being considered. All applications 
received by 5 pm on Monday, May 6, will be presented to Council for consideration and 
discussion at its work session on Tuesday, May 14. Applicants will be invited to make a 90-
second “pitch” for themselves at the work session, although the pitch won’t be required for 
consideration. The Mayor will make recommendations to Council for appointments at the 
Council’s regular meeting on Tuesday, May 28. For further details, please visit 
https://cms7.revize.com/revize/cityofmaplewoodmo/government/boards_and_commissions/index
.php 
 
  

https://www.cityofmaplewood.com/government/resources/planning___zoning_commission.php
https://cityofmaplewoodmo.rja.revize.com/forms/2834
https://cms7files1.revize.com/cityofmaplewoodmo/Document_center/Government/Board%20&%20Commissions/Boards%20and%20Commissions%20Application_2024_PRINT-fillable.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/cityofmaplewoodmo/Document_center/Government/Board%20&%20Commissions/Boards%20and%20Commissions%20Application_2024_PRINT-fillable.pdf
https://cms7.revize.com/revize/cityofmaplewoodmo/government/boards_and_commissions/index.php
https://cms7.revize.com/revize/cityofmaplewoodmo/government/boards_and_commissions/index.php


Entry Plan Progress 
I recently concluded my third month of employment with the City and include below an update 
regarding the 90-day actions on my entry plan:  
 

Item Not 
Started 

In 
Process 

Ongoing or 
Completed 

Conduct 1:1 and small group listening sessions with city employees to understand their 
perspectives, priorities, and needs.   X 

Initiate regular 1:1 meetings with Mayor and Council Members.   X 
Develop comprehensive framework for implementing and monitoring the city’s five-
year DEIB plan, Welcome Maplewood.  X  

Collaborate with the Finance Department to review current and recent budgets and 
annual comprehensive financial reports (ACFR). Identify financial challenges and 
explore opportunities for optimization. 

  X 

In collaboration with department heads and Council, assess opportunities to update 
existing strategic plan to align with DEIB plan. X   

Identify relevant data sources, processes, deliverables, duties, and peer benchmarks to 
initiate six-month department-level SWOT analysis.  X  

Collaborate with Director of Public Works to propose resources, process, and timeline 
for developing a new comprehensive plan    X 

Evaluate current City Manager communications to Council, including weekly emails 
and public meeting reports, and propose modifications to support more effective 
decision-making. 

  X 

Review and update Council onboarding process. Revisit Missouri Sunshine Law 
training. Collaborate with Council to develop documented norms and protocols.   X 

Develop internal survey tool to assess climate and culture. Gather baseline data to 
inform diverse talent attraction and retention strategies.  X  

Attend and address all boards and commissions. Develop cross-commission work 
alignment related to Welcome Maplewood plan.   X  

Attend community and business association events. Engage with residents and business 
owners to gain insights into their needs and expectations.    X 

Participate in ride-alongs with police, fire, public works, and building department. X   
Meet with adjacent city managers/administrators to discuss priorities and explore 
opportunities for expanded collaboration.   X 

Resume monthly collaborative meetings with MRH Superintendent and Richmond 
Heights City Manager.   X 

Meet with the St. Louis County Executive chief of staff and with offices of county-, 
state-, and federal-level elected representatives. X   

Meet with key real estate holders and business owners in Maplewood.   X 
Attend regional municipal association and professional development meetings.   X 
Evaluate IT infrastructure and solicit staff recommendations for improvements. 
Develop plan for Microsoft 365 adoption.   X 

Evaluate opportunities to upgrade Council meeting broadcast and audio set-up.    X 
Host gatherings in City departments. Invite Council Members to attend.   X 

 

https://cms7files1.revize.com/cityofmaplewoodmo/Document_center/Government/Maplewood_DEIB%205%20Year%20Plan.pdf


·Generating Earned Income
·Deeper Involvement, Excitement, 
 and Engagement from Businesses 
·Better Visual Definition of the SBD
·Increased Safety
·Better Inclusivity

The SBD mission is to ensure the long-

term preservation and vitality of the

Special Business District’s economic,

cultural, social, and environmental assets.

We do this by attracting a diverse

customer and business base, improving

the physical appearance of the business

district, organizing and promoting special

events, providing business grants, and

fostering a supportive business

environment.

Maplewood Special
Business District

GOALS

Annual Events

MISSION



More Marketing and

Promotions

Brochure
Commercial Real 

      Estate Tour
Maplewood Makers

DISCUSSIONS
Security
Event Assessment
Educational Workshops

MARKETING

Marketing and

Promotions



INTEROFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Amber Withycombe, City Manager 
 
FROM: Matthew Nighbor, Chief of Police 
 
DATE: April 2, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Public Safety Cameras  
 
The 2023/2024 police department budget allocates funds for the upgrades to the City of 
Maplewood Public Safety Cameras. The purpose of these much-needed upgrades is to enhance 
the efficiency of the outdated surveillance system, which has become increasingly ineffective in 
recent years.   
 
In 2011, the current video surveillance system was installed at a cost of $125,828. However, over 
time, the cameras have now become outdated and frequently malfunction. Additionally, the DVR 
is no longer recording incidents as intended. This has resulted in several reported incidents at 
locations with camera coverage going unrecorded due to equipment failures.  
 
The installation of new cameras and a functional DVR system will bring about the following 
improvements:  
 
Expanded Access:  All Maplewood police officers will now have 24/7 live viewing capabilities 
through mobile data terminals in patrol vehicles and desktop computers/monitors in the police 
station. Currently, I am the only personnel who can access and retrieve video footage via my 
desktop computer. 
 
Enhanced Camera Technology:  The current PTZ (Pan, Tilt, and Zoom) cameras have 
limitations, resulting in missed incidents due to delays in panning. The new cameras will feature 
Wide Angle and Zoom views, improving the overall efficiency and effectiveness of the system. 
Moreover, these cameras will provide significant enhancements in clarity and quality, ensuring 
that critical details are captured accurately.  
 
Commitment to MRH School Safety: The safety of Maplewood Richmond Heights School 
District students and pedestrians crossing the intersections at Manchester and S. Big Bend is a 
top priority for the City of Maplewood. However, the multiple public safety cameras at 
QuikTrip, crucial for monitoring this intersection, have become non-functional. Recognizing the 
urgency of the situation, immediate upgrades to the public safety cameras at this location are 



imperative to enhance safety measures for MRH students and pedestrians crossing this busy 
intersection. 
 
The public safety cameras are installed at the following locations: 
 

- QuikTrip (Manchester and S. Big Bend) 
- Sutton and Manchester 
- Marietta Parking Lot 
- Yale and Manchester  
- Ryan Hummert Park 
- Deer Creek Park 
- City Hall Exchange Spot 

 
The Public Safety Camera System is currently maintained and serviced by goINET, the City’s IT 
provider. The proposed upgrades to the Public Safety Camera System, which will utilize 
Rhombus cameras, is unique and custom to goINET. The cost of this budgeted project is 
$29,975.00. 

 



03-28-2024/goINET, Inc. Public Safety Cameras Proposal for City of Maplewood  1 
Proprietary & Confidential Information 

 
 

10845 Olive Blvd. 
Suite 200 

St. Louis, MO 63141 
(314) 436-1700 

jashkar@goinet.com 
 

Public Safety Cameras Proposal 
 

Prepared for 
 

 
 

City of Maplewood 
7601 Manchester Road 

  Maplewood, MO. 63142 
 

March 28, 2024 
 

Document Version:  2.0 (2024032802) 
 
The information contained in this document and any files transmitted with it are the property 
of goINET, Inc., are CONFIDENTIAL and should not be disclosed or discussed with anyone other 
than employees of the company. By acceptance of receipt of this information, you hereby 
acknowledge the CONFIDENTIAL nature of the information contained in this document and 
agree not to disclose or discuss the contents of this document to anyone other than appropriate 
employees of the company. 



        
  

03-28-2024/goINET, Inc. Public Safety Cameras Proposal for City of Maplewood  2 
Proprietary & Confidential Information 

 

 

Project Scope 
 

The attached proposal is for the replacement of all Public Safety Cameras at the 
following eight (8) locations: 

- QuikTrip 
- Monarch 
- Marietta 
- Yale 
- Hummert Park 
- Deer Creek North 
- Deer Creek South 
- City Hall Parking Lot (Marketplace Public Exchange) 

 
The current cameras are old, outdated and seldomly work. The current DVR is no longer 
recording incidents. 
 
goINET will setup, install and configure replacement cameras at all above locations. All 
new Cameras will be linked on a secure network, and recording directly to a secure 
Cloud. 
 
The undersigned hereby offers to furnish the items as specified in this proposal. 
  
 
Company:  GOINET, INC._______________________ Date: 03/28/2024_________ 
 
 
Phone #: 314-436-1700_________  Email: jashkar@goinet.com_____________ 
     
 

By:              ___________Joe Ashkar / CEO___________ 
Authorized Representative           Printed Name & Title 
 
 
 

 

 



        
  

03-28-2024/goINET, Inc. Public Safety Cameras Proposal for City of Maplewood  3 
Proprietary & Confidential Information 

 

Detailed Quote & Pricing 
 

Item Description  QTY Total 

   
Hardware & Software   
Rhombus R510G 8.3MP 4K 512GB Standard Zoom Bullet Camera  13 $19,487.00

Rhombus Enterprise Console License - 3 Years  13 $6,227.00

Rhombus R5 Junction Box  13 $1,287.00

Rhombus R5 Pole Bracket  6 $594.00

Cloud Based NVR Recording – 30 Days  13 $0.00

StarTech Rugged Industrial Outdoor 8-Port Gigabit PoE Switch  6 2,400.00

   
SUBTOTAL   $29,995.00  

    

20% HARDWARE & SOFTWARE DISCOUNT  1 ($6,000.00)  

Shipping & Handling  1 $380.00  

  
ONSITE INSTALLATION & CONFIGURATION 32 $5,600.00
 
    

GRAND TOTAL  $29,975.00

 

 

Client Acceptance 

 
Authorized Signature: ______________________________ 

 
Name/Title: ______________________________________ 

 
Date of Acceptance: _______________________________ 

 
Purchase Order Number: ___________________________ 



 R E S O L U T I O N     R24- 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, 
MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE THIRTEEN (13) 
RHOMBUS R510 BULLET PUBLIC SAFETY CAMERAS FROM GOINET IN THE 
AMOUNT OF TWENTY-NINE THOUSAND NINE-HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE DOLLARS 
($29,975.00)  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Maplewood wishes to purchase and have installed thirteen (3) 
Rhombus R510 8.3MP 4K 512GB Bullet public safety cameras; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to replace outdated and failing public safety cameras at 

eight (8) locations within the City (QuikTrip; Sutton and Manchester; Marietta Parking Lot; Yale 
and Manchester; Ryan Hummer Park, Deer Creek Park; and the City Hall parking lot); and   

 
WHEREAS, GoINET is a sole-source provider of Rhombus enterprise security camera 

systems that integrate with the city’s current hardware; and 
 
WHEREAS, GoINET is the City’s contracted IT services, software, and hardware 

provider;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:  

 
The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase thirteen (3) Rhombus R510 8.3MP 

4K 512GB Bullet public safety cameras. 
 

 
Passed this 9th day of April, 2024. 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
  ______________________________________ 
  Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
Approved this 9th day of April, 2024. 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
  ______________________________________ 
  Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 
 



                                                                                                                                

INTEROFFICE 

MEMORANDUM 

__________________________________________________________ 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Anthony Traxler, Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Works 

Date: April 5, 2024 

Subject: Central Park Improvements 

 

The Public Works Department received a grant from the St. Louis County Municipal Park Grant 

Commission in the amount of $404,899 for renovations to Central Park. Staff worked with our 

consultant, SWT, to create several potential options for park improvements. The City created an 

online poll that gave respondents several options for Central Park’s new layout. The respondents 

choose option #1 (photo attached) which will replace the existing playground and play surface.  

This option will also include new amenities such as a play area for younger children (tot play area) 

and a shaded seating area.     

 

The City of Maplewood secured Sourcewell Pricing through PlayPower LT Farmington, Inc. in 

the amount of $441,365.68 for the aforementioned improvements to Central Park. Sourcewell is a 

government agency offering competitively solicited contracts that not-for-profit entities can use to 

secure goods and services.   

 

Matching funds for the Central Park renovation will come from the half-cent parks and stormwater 

account. If you have any questions, comments, or concerns regarding this matter, please do not 

hesitate to contact me at 646-3635. 

 

 

 

 





                                   R E S O L U T I O N                        R24- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE BID FROM PLAYPOWER LT 
FARMINGTON, INC. FOR THE RENOVATION OF CENTRAL PARK IN THE AMOUNT OF 
FOUR HUNDRED FORTY-ONE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-FIVE DOLLARS AND 
SIXTY-EIGHT CENTS ($441,365.68)  

 
WHEREAS, Central Park’s playground and play surface are in poor condition and need to be 

replaced; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Maplewood Public Works Department obtained a grant of $404,899 to replace 

the playground and play surface from the St. Louis County Municipal Park Grant Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sourcewell, a cooperative procurement service, has previously bid playground 

items; and 
 
 WHEREAS, PlayPower LT Farmington, Inc. was the company selected after Sourcewell’s 

competitive bidding process; and  
 
WHEREAS, PlayPower LT Farmington, Inc.’s bid is for $441,365.68.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept the bid from PlayPower LT Farmington, Inc. 
for renovations to Central Park in the amount of four hundred forty-one thousand three hundred sixty-
five dollars and sixty-eight cents ($441,365.68). 

 
 
Passed this 9th day of April, 2024. 

 
______________________________ 
Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 

 
Attest: 

______________________________ 
Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 

 
 

Approved this 9th day of April, 2024. 
 

______________________________ 
Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
______________________________ 
Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 
 



                                                                                                                                

INTEROFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

__________________________________________________________ 
 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Anthony Traxler, Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Works 

Date: April 5, 2024 

Subject: Maplewood Family Aquatic Center Filter Tank Project 
 
The original sand in the filter tanks at the Maplewood Family Aquatic Center (MFAC) needs to be 
replaced. It is also likely some of the lateral lines running to and from the filter are damaged due 
to sand being present in the competition pool. However, this cannot be determined until the sand 
within the filters has been removed. The bid also seeks to update exchange valves and rubber 
gaskets on all filter tanks (6 total tanks). 
 
A request for bids was placed in The Countian on March 15, 2024, seeking a contractor for the 
aforementioned project. Staff also sent the bid notice to LuxeLife Pools, Midwest Pools, and Pool 
Tron.   
 
Bids were publicly opened on March 29, 2024 and one (1) bid was received.   
 
 Company      Total 
 Midwest Pool Services & Supply   $47,744 
 
Midwest Pool Services & Supply has worked successfully with the City on numerous pool 
projects and is an excellent pool contractor. Therefore, staff recommends approval of the bid 
from Midwest Pool Services & Supply. 
 
Funds for the MFAC Filter Tank project will come from the half-cent parks and stormwater 
account. If you have any questions, comments, or concerns regarding this matter, please do not 
hesitate to contact me at 646-3635. 
 
 
 

 



                                   R E S O L U T I O N                        R24- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE BID FROM MIDWEST POOL 
SERVICES & SUPPLY TO CHANGE THE FILTER SAND, REPAIR DAMAGED FILTER 
LATERAL LINES AND UPGRADE THE FILTER EXCHANGE VALVES AT THE MAPLEWOOD 
FAMILY AQUATIC CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF FORTY-SEVEN THOUSAND SEVEN 
HUNDRED FORTY-FOUR DOLLARS ($47,744)  

 
WHEREAS, bids were duly advertised and publicly opened on March 29, 2024, at Maplewood 

City Hall; and   
 

WHEREAS, one (1) bid was received and it was considered responsive; and 
 
WHEREAS, the sole bid was from Midwest Pool Services & Supply in the amount of $47,744; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, Midwest Pool Services & Supply has successfully completed numerous projects for 

the City in the past.    
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept the bid from Midwest Pool Services & Supply 
for changing the filter sand in the existing tanks, repairing any damaged lateral lines, and replacing four 
filter exchange valves at the Maplewood Family Aquatic Center in the amount of forty-seven thousand 
seven hundred forty-four dollars ($47,744). 

 
 
Passed this 9th day of April, 2024. 

 
______________________________ 
Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 

 
Attest: 

______________________________ 
Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 

 
 

Approved this 9th day of April, 2024. 
 

______________________________ 
Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
______________________________ 
Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 
 



                                                                                                                       

INTEROFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

__________________________________________________________ 
 

To: Mayor & City Council 

From: Anthony J. Traxler, Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Works 

Date: April 2, 2024 

Subject: Window Replacement – Public Works Garage 
 
The front windows at the Public Works Garage are approximately 50 years old and need to be 
replaced. A request for bids was placed in The Countian on February 26, 2024, seeking a contractor 
to remove the existing windows and install new thermal insulated glass. City staff also sent the bid 
notice to Gallagher Brothers Construction, Empire Supply, Gravois Glass, and STL Glazing, LLC.  
 
Bids were publicly opened on March 15, 2024, and one (1) bid was received.   
 
 Company      Total 
 STL Glazing, LLC     $21,290 
 
STL Glazing, LLC installed windows at City Hall last year and did an excellent job. Therefore, 
staff recommends the bid of STL Glazing. 
 
Please see the attached resolution requesting City Council approval for the Public Works Garage 
replacement windows. If you have any questions, comments or concerns on this matter, please do 
not hesitate to contact me at 646-3635. 
 
  

 



R E S O L U T I O N                        R24-  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, 
MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE BID FROM STL 
GLAZING, LLC. IN THE AMOUNT OF TWENTY-ONE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED 
NINETY DOLLARS ($21,290) FOR REPLACEMENT WINDOWS FOR THE PUBLIC 
WORKS GARAGE  

 
WHEREAS, the windows along the east wall of the public works garage need to be 

replaced; and 
 
WHEREAS, bids were duly advertised and publicly opened on March 15, 2024, at 

Maplewood City Hall; and   
 

WHEREAS, one (1) bid was received and is considered responsive; and 
 
WHEREAS, the sole bid was from STL Glazing, LLC. in the amount of $21,290; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Maplewood has successfully worked with STL Glazing, LLC. in 

the past. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept the bid from STL Glazing, LLC in the 
amount of twenty-one thousand two hundred ninety dollars ($21,290) for replacement windows 
for the Public Works garage. 

 
Passed this 9th day of April, 2024. 

 
_________________________ 
Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 

 
Attest: 

_________________________ 
Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 
 

 
Approved this 9th day of April, 2024.      

 
_________________________ 
Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 

 
Attest: 

_________________________ 
Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 



Memorandum 
 
To: Mayor & City Council 
From: Amber Withycombe, City Manager 
Date: April 4, 2024 
Re: Police and Fire Pension Trust Asset Allocation 
 
 
On February 22, 2022, the City Council approved Bill No. 6181, Ordinance No. 5976 amending 
Chapter 2, Article IV of the Code of Ordinances to allow for the Missouri Local Government 
Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) to assume administration of the legacy City-
administered Police and Fire Pension plan, which at the time was providing benefits to 20 
retirees and their beneficiaries. All Police and Fire personnel who had joined the City after 2011 
were already enrolled in the LAGERS pension plan.  

Please see the enclosed 2022 memo from the City’s former Finance Director to the former City 
Manager. The memo details the actions the City and the existing Police and Fire Pension Board 
took at that time to amend City ordinances to allow LAGERS to administer the legacy pension; 
to obtain approval from the former pension board to approve LAGERS’ administration of the 
legacy plan; to approve the City entering into agreement with LAGERS to assume administration 
of the legacy plan; and to provide an actuarial report of the legacy plan to initiate a 45-day public 
inspection period. These approved changes were implemented in April 2022. 

At that time, $5,640,320 from the Police and Fire Pension Trust Fund was moved to LAGERS to 
administer the legacy pension plan. The remaining assets from the legacy fund, approximately $7 
million, were invested by UMB Bank in a mix of 50% equity and 50% fixed-income funds. In 
January of this year, the fund was moved from UMB to Commerce Trust, which does not charge 
fees for the management of the assets and provides banking services for other City accounts. The 
market value of the fund as of March 27, 2024, was $7,134.660, invested in 60% equity funds, 
35% fixed-income funds, and 5% alternative funds. 

Since the assets are no longer part of a pension trust fund and are held directly by the City, per 
Article VI, Section 23 of the Missouri Constitution, they cannot be invested in corporate stock. 
Staff is currently working with Commerce Bank to redirect a portion of the investment to remain 
in compliance with this requirement. However, the larger issue remains that the City has not 
established a plan or purpose for these funds and now seeks to work with LAGERS, the City’s 
auditing firm, Commerce Bank, and representatives of the former Police and Fire Pension Board 
to determine the most prudent use of these funds to meet Police and Fire pension obligations 
under LAGERS. 

 



Page 54 of 117



Page 55 of 117



Page 56 of 117



Page 57 of 117



Page 58 of 117



Page 59 of 117



Page 60 of 117



Page 61 of 117



Page 62 of 117



Page 63 of 117



Page 64 of 117



Page 65 of 117



Page 66 of 117



Page 67 of 117



Page 68 of 117



Page 69 of 117



Page 70 of 117



Page 71 of 117



Page 72 of 117



Page 73 of 117



Page 74 of 117



Page 75 of 117



Page 76 of 117



Page 77 of 117



Page 78 of 117



Page 79 of 117



Page 80 of 117



Page 81 of 117



Page 82 of 117



Page 83 of 117



Page 84 of 117



Page 85 of 117



Page 86 of 117



Page 87 of 117



BILL NO.     6181                                        ORDINANCE NO. 5976

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, 

MISSOURI, AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE IV. – POLICEMEN’S AND FIREMEN’S 

RETIREMENT FUND TO REFLECT THAT THE CITY IS OPTING FOR LAGERS TO 

ADMINISTER ITS LEGACY POLICEMEN’S AND FIREMEN’S RETIREMENT FUND.

WHEREAS, Article IV, Sec. 2-212 of the Maplewood Code of Ordinances provides that 

generally all persons who become employees of the police and fire departments shall be subject to 

the provisions of the policemen’s and firemen’s retirement fund (the “Plan”); and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 5591 of the Maplewood Code of Ordinances provided that, 

effective January 1, 2011, all eligible current and future members of the police and fire department 

became covered under the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System 

(“LAGERS”) and as a result, the only individuals whose benefits were provided under the Plan on 

or after January 1, 2011 were those who, as of January 1, 2011, were retirees, widows, or a 

terminated employees entitled to vested benefits; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 70.621 of the Missouri Revised Statutes, the City may 

enter into an agreement with LAGERS whereby LAGERS assumes all duties and responsibilities 

of operating the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that certain amendments to the Maplewood Code 

of Ordinances are necessary to allow LAGERS to administer the Plan and wishes to amend Chapter 

2, Article IV. – Policemen’s and Firemen’s Retirement Fund for that purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section I. Chapter 2, Article IV of the Maplewood Code of Ordinances is hereby amended 

to read as follows: 

ARTICLE IV. - POLICEMEN’S AND FIREMEN’S RETIREMENT FUND 

Sec. 2-206. – Creation; Frozen.

( a ) T h e r e s h a l l b e a p o l i c e m e n ’ s a n d f i r e m e n ’ s r e t i r e m e n t f u n d , h e r e i n a f t e r r e f e r r e d 

t o a s “ t h e f u n d ” o r “ t h e p l a n ” , w h i c h s h a l l p r o v i d e m o n e y f o r t h e r e t i r e m e n t o f 

e m p l o y e e s o f t h e p o l i c e a n d f i r e d e p a r t m e n t s w h o r e t i r e d o r d i s c o n t i n u e d s e r v i c e 

p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , a n d a p e n s i o n f o r t h e i r w i d o w s a n d m i n o r c h i l d r e n . T h e 

p r o v i s i o n s o f t h i s a r t i c l e , a s m a y b e a m e n d e d , w h i c h p r o v i s i o n s g o v e r n t h e f u n d , 

a r e   s o m e t i m e s   r e f e r r e d   t o   a s   “ t h e   p l a n ”   o r   “ t h i s   p l a n . ” 

( b ) A l l a s s e t s o f t h e f u n d , i n c l u d i n g i n v e s t m e n t i n c o m e , s h a l l b e h e l d i n t r u s t f o r t h e 

e x c l u s i v e b e n e f i t o f t h e e m p l o y e e s e n t i t l e d t o b e n e f i t s u n d e r t h i s p l a n a n d t h e i r 



2

b e n e f i c i a r i e s a n d s h a l l b e u s e d t o p a y b e n e f i t s t o s u c h p e r s o n s o r t o p a y 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e e x p e n s e s o f t h e f u n d a n d s h a l l n o t b e d i v e r t e d t o o r u s e d f o r a n y 

o t h e r p u r p o s e o r r e v e r t t o o r i n u r e t o t h e b e n e f i t o f t h e c i t y , e x c e p t a s o t h e r w i s e 

p r o v i d e d   i n   t h i s   a r t i c l e . 

( c ) N o t w i t h s t a n d i n g a n y t h i n g t o t h e c o n t r a r y , e f f e c t i v e J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , t h e f u n d w a s 

f r o z e n , s u c h t h a t n o p e r s o n s h a l l b e c o m e s u b j e c t t o t h e f u n d , n o p e n s i o n b e n e f i t 

s h a l l a c c r u e u n d e r f u n d f o r a n y p e r s o n f o r a n y p e r i o d b e g i n n i n g o n o r a f t e r 

J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , a n d n o b e n e f i t s h a l l b e p a y a b l e p u r s u a n t t o t h e f u n d w i t h r e s p e c t 

t o a n y p e r s o n , e x c e p t a n y i n d i v i d u a l w h o , p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , w a s a r e t i r e e , 

a s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e , o r a t e r m i n a t e d e m p l o y e e o f t h e p o l i c e a n d f i r e d e p a r t m e n t s 

w h o w a s e n t i t l e d t o a v e s t e d b e n e f i t s , a n d e x c e p t a s o t h e r w i s e e x p r e s s l y p r o v i d e d 

i n s e c t i o n 2 2 2 ( c ) . E f f e c t i v e a s o f A p r i l 1 , 2 0 2 2 , t h e M i s s o u r i L o c a l G o v e r n m e n t 

E m p l o y e e s R e t i r e m e n t S y s t e m w i l l t a k e o v e r t h e p e r f o r m a n c e o f a l l d u t i e s a n d 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s o f o p e r a t i n g t h e f u n d a n d a d m i n i s t e r i n g t h e p a y m e n t o f t h e 

a m o u n t , a n d o t h e r f e a t u r e s , o f t h e b e n e f i t s u n d e r t h e f u n d t o t h e a p p l i c a b l e 

p a r t i c i p a n t s   a n d   b e n e f i c i a r i e s . 

Sec. 2-207. - Board of trustees.

( a ) C o m p o s i t i o n .   E f f e c t i v e a s o f A p r i l 1 , 2 0 2 2 , t h e r e t i r e m e n t f u n d s h a l l b e u n d e r t h e 

e x c l u s i v e c o n t r o l o f a b o a r d o f t h e M i s s o u r i L o c a l G o v e r n m e n t E m p l o y e e s 

R e t i r e m e n t S y s t e m , h e r e i n a f t e r r e f e r r e d t o a s “ t h e b o a r d ” . P r i o r t o A p r i l 1 , 2 0 2 2 , 

t h e r e t i r e m e n t f u n d w a s u n d e r t h e e x c l u s i v e c o n t r o l o f a b o a r d o f t r u s t e e s , w h i c h 

c o n s i s t e d o f t h e c i t y m a n a g e r , o n e m e m b e r o f t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t , o n e m e m b e r 

o f t h e f i r e d e p a r t m e n t , a n d o n e c i t i z e n a p p o i n t e d b y t h e m a y o r a n d a p p r o v e d b y 

t h e o t h e r m e m b e r s o f t h e b o a r d o f t r u s t e e s a n d o n e m e m b e r e m p l o y e d b y a 

c o m m e r c i a l e n t e r p r i s e l o c a t e d i n t h e c i t y a p p o i n t e d b y t h e m a y o r a n d a p p r o v e d 

b y t h e c i t y c o u n c i l . T h e m e m b e r s o f t h e b o a r d o f t r u s t e e s f r o m t h e p o l i c e a n d f i r e 

d e p a r t m e n t s w e r e e l e c t e d b y t h e m e m b e r s o f t h e i r r e s p e c t i v e d e p a r t m e n t s o n c e 

e v e r y   t w o   y e a r s ,   o n   t h e   f i r s t   M o n d a y   i n   D e c e m b e r . 

( b ) R u l e s a n d r e g u l a t i o n s .   T h e b o a r d m a y m a k e r u l e s a n d r e g u l a t i o n s f o r t h e 

g o v e r n m e n t o f i t s a f f a i r s a n d t h e a d m i n i s t r a t i o n o f t h e f u n d , a n d f o r t h e l i m i t a t i o n 

o f   t i m e   w i t h i n   w h i c h   c l a i m s   m a y   b e   f i l e d . 

( c ) J u r i s d i c t i o n .   T h e b o a r d s h a l l h a v e e x c l u s i v e j u r i s d i c t i o n o f a l l r e t i r e m e n t c l a i m s , 

b e n e f i t s a n d r e f u n d s w i t h r e s p e c t t o t h e a d m i n i s t r a t i o n o f t h e f u n d , b u t n o t t h e 

t r u s t e s t a b l i s h e d i n c o n n e c t i o n w i t h t h e f u n d . I t s h a l l h o l d h e a r i n g s a n d t a k e a n d 

p r e s e r v e e v i d e n c e , r e c o r d s a n d m a k e f i n a l f i n d i n g s a n d d e c i s i o n s , w h i c h s h a l l b e 

s u b j e c t o n l y t o r e v i e w b y c e r t i o r a r i w i t h r i g h t o f a p p e a l a s i n c i v i l c a s e s f r o m t h e 

d e c i s i o n   o f   a   r e v i e w i n g   b o a r d . 

( d ) D a t a .   T h e b o a r d s h a l l k e e p s u c h d a t a a s s h a l l b e n e c e s s a r y f o r a c t u a r i a l v a l u a t i o n 

o f   t h e   f u n d s   o f   t h e   f u n d ,   a n d   f o r   c h e c k i n g   t h e   e x p e r i e n c e   o f   t h e   f u n d . 



3

( e ) R e c o r d o f p r o c e e d i n g s .   T h e b o a r d s h a l l k e e p a r e c o r d o f i t s p r o c e e d i n g s a n d k e e p 

t h o s e   r e p o r t s   o p e n   t o   t h e   p u b l i c   f o r   i n s p e c t i o n .   

( f ) I n v e s t m e n t s o f a s s e t s .   T h e b o a r d s h a l l h o l d a s s e t s o f t h e f u n d i n t r u s t a n d s h a l l 

i n v e s t   a n d   r e i n v e s t   a l l   a s s e t s   o f   t h e   f u n d . 

Sec. 2-208. - Monetary composition.

( a ) T h e f u n d s h a l l i n c l u d e a l l m o n e y s t h a t m a y b e g i v e n t o t h e b o a r d a n d a n y o t h e r 

f u n d s g i v e n b y a n y p e r s o n f o r t h e u s e s a n d p u r p o s e s f o r w h i c h t h e f u n d w a s 

c r e a t e d . T h e b o a r d m a y t a k e , b y g i f t , g r a n t , d e v i s e o r b e q u e s t , a n y m o n e y , 

p e r s o n a l t y , r e a l t y , o r a n y i n t e r e s t o f a n y k i n d w h a t e v e r i n a n y p r o p e r t y o f a n y 

k i n d   w h a t e v e r ,   a n d   s u b j e c t   t o   a n y   l i m i t a t i o n   a n d   c o n d i t i o n   w h a t e v e r . 

( b ) T h e f u n d s h a l l a l s o i n c l u d e a l l m o n e y , f e e s , r e w a r d s o r e m o l u m e n t s o f a n y k i n d 

t h a t   m a y   b e   p a i d   o r   g i v e n   t o   t h e   f u n d . 

Sec. 2-209. - Mandatory employer contributions.

( a ) E f f e c t i v e o n a n d a f t e r J a n u a r y 1 , 1 9 9 5 a n d t h r o u g h D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 0 1 0 , t h e c i t y 

s h a l l c o n t r i b u t e t o t h e f u n d a n a m o u n t e q u a l t o s e v e n p e r c e n t o f t h e s t a t e d b a s e 

s a l a r y o f e v e r y e m p l o y e e w h o i s e l i g i b l e t o r e c e i v e b e n e f i t s u n d e r t h i s a r t i c l e . 

S u c h a m o u n t , r e f e r r e d t o a s t h e “ m a n d a t o r y e m p l o y e r c o n t r i b u t i o n , ” s h a l l b e 

t r e a t e d a s a n e m p l o y e r c o n t r i b u t i o n f o r f e d e r a l i n c o m e t a x p u r p o s e s o n a n d a f t e r 

s u c h   d a t e . 

( b ) F o r p u r p o s e s o f t h i s a r t i c l e , a y e a r o f “ s e r v i c e ” o r “ s e r v i c e i n t h e d e p a r t m e n t ” 

s h a l l m e a n a 3 6 5 - d a y p e r i o d i n w h i c h a p e r s o n w a s e m p l o y e d b y t h e p o l i c e 

d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t a n d f o r w h i c h a m a n d a t o r y e m p l o y e r c o n t r i b u t i o n 

w a s m a d e w i t h r e s p e c t t o s u c h e m p l o y e e ’ s s t a t e d b a s e s a l a r y a n d c r e d i t e d t o t h e 

f u n d   i n   a c c o r d a n c e   w i t h   s u b s e c t i o n   ( a )   o f   t h i s   s e c t i o n . 

( c ) T h e a c t u a l b a s e s a l a r y p a y a b l e i n c a s h t o s u c h a n e m p l o y e e s h a l l b e t h e 

e m p l o y e e ’ s s t a t e d b a s e s a l a r y l e s s t h e m a n d a t o r y e m p l o y e r c o n t r i b u t i o n p a i d t o 

t h e   f u n d   o n   b e h a l f   o f   s u c h   e m p l o y e e . 

( d ) O n a n d a f t e r J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , n o f u r t h e r c o n t r i b u t i o n s w i l l b e m a d e t o t h e f u n d 

p u r s u a n t   t o   t h i s   s e c t i o n   2 - 2 0 9 . 

Sec. 2-210. - Exemption of school traffic officers and special police officers. 

T h e   p r o v i s i o n s   o f   t h i s   a r t i c l e   d o   n o t   a p p l y   t o   s c h o o l   t r a f f i c   o f f i c e r s   o r   s p e c i a l   p o l i c e   o f f i c e r s . 

Sec. 2-211. - Tax.



4

A p r o p e r t y t a x s h a l l b e l e v i e d o n e v e r y $ 1 0 0 . 0 0 o f a s s e s s e d v a l u a t i o n o f a l l t a x a b l e p r o p e r t y i n 

t h e c i t y . T h i s a m o u n t s h a l l b e c o n t r i b u t e d t o t h e t r u s t a n d s h a l l b e u s e d t o p r o v i d e m o n e y f o r t h e 

r e t i r e m e n t   o f   e l i g i b l e   e m p l o y e e s   o f   t h e   p o l i c e   a n d   f i r e   d e p a r t m e n t s   a n d   f o r   n o   o t h e r   p u r p o s e s . 

Sec. 2-212. - Plan participation required.

P r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , a l l p e r s o n s w h o b e c o m e e m p l o y e e s o f t h e p o l i c e a n d f i r e d e p a r t m e n t s 

a f t e r t h e o r i g i n a l e f f e c t i v e d a t e o f t h e f u n d w e r e s u b j e c t t o t h e p r o v i s i o n s o f t h i s a r t i c l e a s a 

c o n d i t i o n o f t h e i r e m p l o y m e n t , e x c l u d i n g t h o s e e m p l o y e e s , i f a n y , t h a t h a d p a s s e d t h e i r 3 5 t h 

b i r t h d a y a t t h e t i m e o f i n i t i a l e m p l o y m e n t , a n d c o n s e q u e n t l y w e r e n o t e l i g i b l e f o r p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

p r i o r t o O c t o b e r 1 6 , 1 9 9 2 , a n d t h a t h a v e e x e r c i s e d t h e i r o n e - t i m e e l e c t i o n n o t t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n 

t h e p l a n . N o s u c h e m p l o y e e w h o h a s s o e l e c t e d n o t t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h e p l a n s h a l l b e e l i g i b l e f o r 

a n y b e n e f i t s ( r e t i r e m e n t , d i s a b i l i t y , w i d o w ’ s a n d c h i l d r e n ’ s , o r o t h e r w i s e ) u n d e r t h i s a r t i c l e . O n 

a n d a f t e r J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , n o n e w e m p l o y e e s o f t h e p o l i c e a n d f i r e d e p a r t m e n t s b e c a m e e l i g i b l e 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h e p l a n , a n d a l l a c t i v e e m p l o y e e s o f t h e p o l i c e a n d f i r e d e p a r t m e n t s b e c a m e 

e l i g i b l e t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h e M i s s o u r i L o c a l G o v e r n m e n t E m p l o y e e s R e t i r e m e n t S y s t e m a n d 

w e r e   n o   l o n g e r   e l i g i b l e   o r   p a r t i c i p a t i n g   i n   t h e   f u n d . 

Sec. 2-213. - Pension amount—Application for retirement.

A n y e m p l o y e e o f t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t w h o r e t i r e d o r d i s c o n t i n u e d s e r v i c e 

p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 a n d h a d 2 0 y e a r s o f s e r v i c e i n t h e d e p a r t m e n t w a s p e r m i t t e d t o f i l e w i t h 

t h e b o a r d a n a p p l i c a t i o n f o r p e n s i o n o n r e t i r e m e n t , a l s o s e t t i n g f o r t h t h e t i m e , n o t l e s s t h a n 3 0 

n o r m o r e t h a n 9 0 d a y s a f t e r f i l i n g t h e a p p l i c a t i o n a t w h i c h h e d e s i r e d t o b e r e t i r e d ; a n d a l t h o u g h 

h i s s e r v i c e h a d b e e n d i s c o n t i n u e d d u r i n g s u c h p e r i o d o f n o t i f i c a t i o n , h e m a y h a v e r e t i r e d a s o f 

t h e t i m e d e s i r e d a n d s h a l l b e p a i d m o n t h l y , f o r l i f e , o u t o f t h e f u n d , a r e t i r e m e n t p e n s i o n o f 4 0 

p e r c e n t o f h i s b a s e p a y , w h i c h s h a l l i n c l u d e l o n g e v i t y a n d e d u c a t i o n a l b o n u s e s a t t h e t i m e o f 

r e t i r e m e n t , p e r m o n t h . H i s p e n s i o n w i l l i n c r e a s e e a c h y e a r t w o p e r c e n t o f t h e 2 0 - y e a r b a s e a f t e r 

2 0 y e a r s ’ s e r v i c e u n t i l h e h a s r e a c h e d t h e 3 0 - y e a r l e v e l . F o r 3 0 y e a r s ’ s e r v i c e , h e w i l l r e c e i v e 6 0 

p e r c e n t o f h i s b a s e p a y a t t h e t i m e o f r e t i r e m e n t w i t h o u t a g e l i m i t . 6 0 p e r c e n t o f t h e b a s e p a y 

s h a l l   b e   t h e   m a x i m u m   p e n s i o n . 

Sec. 2-214. - Same—Application for early retirement.

A n y e m p l o y e e o f t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t w h o r e t i r e d o r d i s c o n t i n u e d s e r v i c e 

p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , h a d a t l e a s t t e n b u t l e s s t h a n 2 0 y e a r s o f s e r v i c e i n t h e d e p a r t m e n t a n d 

w a s n o t b e i n g e n t i t l e d t o a n y o t h e r r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t f r o m t h e f u n d , w a s p e r m i t t e d t o f i l e w i t h 

t h e b o a r d a n a p p l i c a t i o n f o r p e n s i o n , a l s o s e t t i n g f o r t h t h e t i m e , n o t l e s s t h a n 3 0 n o r m o r e t h a n 

9 0 d a y s a f t e r f i l i n g t h e a p p l i c a t i o n , a t w h i c h h e d e s i r e d t o b e r e t i r e d ; a n d a l t h o u g h h i s s e r v i c e 

h a d b e e n d i s c o n t i n u e d d u r i n g s u c h p e r i o d o f n o t i f i c a t i o n , h e m a y h a v e r e t i r e d a s o f t h e t i m e 

d e s i r e d a n d s h a l l b e p a i d m o n t h l y , f o r l i f e , o u t o f t h e f u n d , a r e t i r e m e n t p e n s i o n b e g i n n i n g a t a g e 

5 5   y e a r s   e q u a l   t o   t w o   p e r c e n t   p e r   y e a r   o f   s e r v i c e   i n   t h e   d e p a r t m e n t   o f   h i s   b a s e   m o n t h l y   p a y . 

Sec. 2-215. - Disability retirement.



5

( a ) A n y e m p l o y e e o f t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t w h o w a s p e r m a n e n t l y 

a n d t o t a l l y d i s a b l e d b y i n j u r y o r d i s e a s e p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 s h a l l b e p a i d o u t 

o f   t h e   f u n d   m o n t h l y   f o r   l i f e   a s   l o n g   a s   s u c h   e m p l o y e e   i s   d i s a b l e d : 

( 1 ) 6 0 p e r c e n t o f h i s p a y i f s u c h d i s a b i l i t y w a s c a u s e d b y a c c i d e n t w h i l e 

p e r f o r m i n g   h i s   d u t y ;   o r 

( 2 ) 4 0 p e r c e n t o f h i s p a y i f s u c h d i s a b i l i t y w a s c a u s e d b y a n o n d u t y a c c i d e n t ; 

p r o v i d e d t w o o r m o r e o f t h e d o c t o r s o n t h e m e d i c a l b o a r d h a v e c e r t i f i e d t o 

t h e b o a r d t h a t t h e d i s a b i l i t y i s p e r m a n e n t a n d t o t a l a n d t h a t t h e e m p l o y e e 

s h a l l   b e   r e t i r e d   f r o m   s e r v i c e . 

A p e r s o n r e t i r e d f r o m s e r v i c e p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 p u r s u a n t t o   s e c t i o n 2 - 

2 1 4   s h a l l n o t b e e l i g i b l e t o r e t i r e u n d e r o r r e c e i v e p a y m e n t s p u r s u a n t t o   s e c t i o n 2 - 

2 1 3 . 

( b ) T h e b o a r d s h a l l o n l y r e t i r e , p u r s u a n t t o t h i s s e c t i o n , a s m a n y e m p l o y e e s i n b o t h 

t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t a n d f i r e d e p a r t m e n t a s t h e r e i s a s a f e a n d a d e q u a t e r e s e r v e 

i n   t h e   f u n d . 

Sec. 2-216. - Medical board.

T h i s p r o v i s i o n o n l y a p p l i e s t o d e t e r m i n a t i o n s m a d e p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 . T h e r e s h a l l b e a 

m e d i c a l b o a r d o f t h r e e p h y s i c i a n s a p p o i n t e d b y t h e b o a r d o f t r u s t e e s . T h e m e d i c a l b o a r d s h a l l 

m a k e a l l p h y s i c a l e x a m i n a t i o n s . E x a m i n a t i o n f u n d s s h a l l b e s u p p l i e d b y t h e b o a r d o f t r u s t e e s 

o u t   o f   t h e   f u n d . 

Sec. 2-217. - Periodic examination of persons on disability retirement.

T h i s p r o v i s i o n o n l y a p p l i e s t o d e t e r m i n a t i o n s m a d e p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 . T h e p e r m a n e n c e 

o f d i s a b i l i t y o f a f o r m e r e m p l o y e e o f t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t o n d i s a b i l i t y 

r e t i r e m e n t a l l o w a n c e , a s p r o v i d e d i n   s e c t i o n 2 - 2 1 5 , m a y b e v e r i f i e d b y m e d i c a l e x a m i n a t i o n 

p r i o r t o a g e 6 0 y e a r s , o r a f t e r a g e 6 0 y e a r s i f t h e f o r m e r e m p l o y e e h a s h a d l e s s t h a n 2 0 y e a r s o f 

s e r v i c e , a t a n y r e a s o n a b l e t i m e . T h e b o a r d o f t r u s t e e s i n i t s d i s c r e t i o n s h a l l r e q u i r e f o r m e r 

e m p l o y e e s t o u n d e r g o a m e d i c a l e x a m i n a t i o n a t a p l a c e d e s i g n a t e d b y t h e m e d i c a l b o a r d . S u c h 

e x a m i n a t i o n s h a l l b e m a d e b y t h e m e d i c a l b o a r d , o r i n s p e c i a l c a s e s b y a n a d d i t i o n a l p h y s i c i a n 

o r   p h y s i c i a n s   d e s i g n a t e d   b y   t h e   b o a r d . 

Sec. 2-218. - Surviving spouse and children’s benefits.

( a ) I f a n a c t i v e a n d w o r k i n g e m p l o y e e o f t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t 

s h a l l d i e f r o m i n j u r y o r d i s e a s e a s a r e s u l t o f p e r f o r m a n c e o f h i s d u t i e s , t h e 

s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e s h a l l r e c e i v e a b e n e f i t e q u a l t o 4 0 p e r c e n t o f t h e e m p l o y e e ’ s 

b a s e p a y a t t h e t i m e o f d e a t h , p l u s f i v e p e r c e n t o f t h e b a s e p a y f o r e a c h c h i l d u n d e r 

a g e 1 8 y e a r s . I f t h e r e i s n o s u c h s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e , o r t h e s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e d i e s , 

https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-214SAPPEARE
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-214SAPPEARE
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-213PEAMPPRE
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-213PEAMPPRE
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-214SAPPEARE
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-214SAPPEARE


6

t h e m o n t h l y p a y m e n t p r o v i d e d f o r s u c h s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e s h a l l b e d i v i d e d e q u a l l y 

a m o n g t h e c h i l d r e n o f s u c h m e m b e r w h o a r e l i v i n g a n d u n d e r t h e a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s 

a t t h e t i m e o f t h e d i v i s i o n ; a n d e a c h c h i l d s h a l l r e c e i v e i t s s h a r e o f s u c h d i v i s i o n 

m o n t h l y . A s e a c h s u c h c h i l d d i e s o r o b t a i n s t h e a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s , t h e c h i l d ’ s s h a r e 

s h a l l b e d i v i d e d a m o n g t h e r e m a i n i n g c h i l d r e n , i f a n y , w h o a r e l i v i n g a n d u n d e r 

t h e   a g e   o f   1 8   y e a r s . . 

( b ) T h e s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e o f a n a c t i v e a n d w o r k i n g e m p l o y e e / m e m b e r o f t h e p o l i c e 

d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t d y i n g f r o m c a u s e s n o t a s a r e s u l t o f t h e p e r f o r m a n c e 

o f h i s d u t i e s s h a l l r e c e i v e a b e n e f i t e q u a l t o 3 0 p e r c e n t o f t h e e m p l o y e e ’ s b a s e 

p a y a t t h e t i m e o f d e a t h p l u s f i v e p e r c e n t f o r e a c h c h i l d u n d e r t h e a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s . 

I f t h e r e i s n o s u c h s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e , o r t h e s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e d i e s , t h e m o n t h l y 

p a y m e n t p r o v i d e d f o r s u c h s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e s h a l l b e d i v i d e d e q u a l l y a m o n g t h e 

c h i l d r e n o f s u c h m e m b e r w h o a r e l i v i n g a n d u n d e r t h e a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s a t t h e t i m e 

o f t h e d i v i s i o n ; a n d e a c h c h i l d s h a l l r e c e i v e i t s s h a r e o f s u c h d i v i s i o n m o n t h l y . A s 

e a c h s u c h c h i l d d i e s o r a t t a i n s t h e a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s , t h a t c h i l d ’ s s h a r e s h a l l b e 

d i v i d e d e q u a l l y a m o n g t h e r e m a i n i n g c h i l d r e n , i f a n y , w h o a r e l i v i n g a n d u n d e r 

t h e   a g e   o f   1 8   y e a r s .   

( c ) T h e s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e o f a n e m p l o y e e w h o d i e s a f t e r r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t s h a v e 

c o m m e n c e d u n d e r   s e c t i o n 2 - 2 1 3   s h a l l r e c e i v e 5 0 p e r c e n t o f t h e r e t i r e e ’ s b e n e f i t , 

p l u s f i v e p e r c e n t o f t h e r e t i r e e ’ s b e n e f i t f o r e a c h c h i l d u n d e r t h e a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s , 

b u t n o t l e s s t h a n $ 2 5 0 . 0 0 p e r m o n t h . I f t h e r e i s n o s u c h s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e , o r t h e 

s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e d i e s , t h e m o n t h l y p a y m e n t f o r s u c h s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e s h a l l b e 

d i v i d e d e q u a l l y a m o n g t h e c h i l d r e n o f s u c h r e t i r e e w h o a r e l i v i n g a n d u n d e r t h e 

a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s a t t h e t i m e o f t h e d i v i s i o n ; a n d e a c h c h i l d s h a l l r e c e i v e i t s s h a r e 

o f s u c h d i v i s i o n m o n t h l y . A s e a c h s u c h c h i l d d i e s o r o b t a i n s t h e a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s , 

t h a t c h i l d ’ s s h a r e s h a l l b e d i v i d e d e q u a l l y a m o n g t h e r e m a i n i n g c h i l d r e n , i f a n y , 

w h o   a r e   l i v i n g   a n d   u n d e r   t h e   a g e   o f   1 8   y e a r s .   

( d ) T h e s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e o f a n e m p l o y e e w h o d i e s a f t e r r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t s h a v e 

c o m m e n c e d u n d e r   s e c t i o n 2 - 2 1 4   s h a l l r e c e i v e 5 0 p e r c e n t o f t h e r e t i r e e ’ s b e n e f i t . 

I f t h e r e i s n o s u c h s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e , o r t h e s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e d i e s , t h e m o n t h l y 

p a y m e n t f o r s u c h s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e s h a l l b e d i v i d e d e q u a l l y a m o n g t h e c h i l d r e n 

o f s u c h r e t i r e e w h o a r e l i v i n g a n d u n d e r t h e a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s a t t h e t i m e o f t h e 

d i v i s i o n ; a n d e a c h c h i l d s h a l l r e c e i v e i t s s h a r e o f s u c h d i v i s i o n m o n t h l y . A s e a c h 

s u c h c h i l d d i e s o r a t t a i n s t h e a g e o f 1 8 y e a r s , t h a t c h i l d ’ s s h a r e s h a l l b e d i v i d e d 

e q u a l l y a m o n g t h e r e m a i n i n g c h i l d r e n , i f a n y , w h o a r e l i v i n g a n d u n d e r t h e a g e o f 

1 8 . . 

( e ) I f a n a c t i v e a n d w o r k i n g e m p l o y e e o f t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t 

s h a l l d i e w i t h n o s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e o r c h i l d b e l o w a g e 1 8 y e a r s a t t h e t i m e o f d e a t h , 

a n a m o u n t e q u a l t o t h e c o n t r i b u t i o n s m a d e t o t h e f u n d b y t h e e m p l o y e e s h a l l b e 

d i v i d e d   e q u a l l y   a m o n g   t h e   c h i l d r e n   o f   s u c h   m e m b e r   w h o   a r e   t h e n   l i v i n g . 

Sec. 2-219. - Procedure upon employee leaving service.

https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-213PEAMPPRE
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-214SAPPEARE


7

( a ) A n y e m p l o y e e o f t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t v o l u n t a r i l y l e a v i n g t h e 

s e r v i c e f o r a n y c a u s e o t h e r t h a n d e a t h o r r e t i r e m e n t w i t h p e n s i o n , s h a l l b e p a i d o n 

d e m a n d t h e a m o u n t o f h i s c o n t r i b u t i o n t o t h e f u n d m a d e b e f o r e J a n u a r y 1 , 1 9 9 5 , 

p l u s t h e a m o u n t o f t h e m a n d a t o r y e m p l o y e r c o n t r i b u t i o n s m a d e o n b e h a l f o f s u c h 

e m p l o y e e , p u r s u a n t t o   s e c t i o n 2 - 2 0 9 , a f t e r 1 9 9 4 , w i t h o u t i n t e r e s t . O n r e e n t e r i n g 

t h e   s e r v i c e ,   t h a t   e m p l o y e e   e n t e r s   t h e   s e r v i c e   w i t h o u t   c r e d i t   f o r   a n y   p r i o r   s e r v i c e . 

( b ) A n y e m p l o y e e o f t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t o r f i r e d e p a r t m e n t l e a v i n g t h e s e r v i c e 

i n v o l u n t a r i l y s h a l l b e p a i d , o n d e m a n d , t h e a m o u n t o f h i s c o n t r i b u t i o n t o t h e f u n d 

m a d e b e f o r e J a n u a r y 1 , 1 9 9 5 , p l u s t h e a m o u n t o f t h e m a n d a t o r y e m p l o y e r 

c o n t r i b u t i o n s m a d e o n b e h a l f o f s u c h e m p l o y e e , p u r s u a n t t o   s e c t i o n 2 - 2 0 9 , a f t e r 

1 9 9 4 , w i t h o u t i n t e r e s t . O n r e e n t e r i n g s e r v i c e , t h e e m p l o y e e m u s t r e i m b u r s e t h e 

f u n d   f o r   t h e   m o n e y   h e   w i t h d r e w   a n d   b e   g i v e n   c r e d i t   f o r   p r i o r   s e r v i c e . 

( c ) E f f e c t i v e M a y 9 , 1 9 9 5 t h r o u g h D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 0 1 0 , i f t h e d i s t r i b u t e e o f a n y 

e l i g i b l e r o l l o v e r d i s t r i b u t i o n e l e c t s t o h a v e s u c h d i s t r i b u t i o n p a i d d i r e c t l y t o a n 

e l i g i b l e r e t i r e m e n t p l a n a n d s p e c i f i e s t h e e l i g i b l e r e t i r e m e n t p l a n t o w h i c h t h e 

d i s t r i b u t i o n i s t o b e p a i d ( i n t h e f o r m a n d a t t h e t i m e a s t h e p l a n a d m i n i s t r a t o r 

m a y p r e s c r i b e ) , t h e d i s t r i b u t i o n s h a l l b e m a d e i n t h e f o r m o f a d i r e c t t r u s t e e - t o - 

t r u s t e e   t r a n s f e r   t o   t h e   e l i g i b l e   r e t i r e m e n t   p l a n   s o   s p e c i f i e d . 

( d ) E f f e c t i v e o n a n d a f t e r J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , t h e r u l e s a n d r e g u l a t i o n s e s t a b l i s h e d b y 

t h e   b o a r d   w i l l   g o v e r n   a n y   e l i g i b l e   r o l l o v e r   d i s t r i b u t i o n s . 

Sec. 2-220. - Benefits not assignable, etc.

T h e b e n e f i t p a y a b l e b y t h e p o l i c e m e n ’ s a n d f i r e m e n ’ s r e t i r e m e n t f u n d , w h e t h e r b e f o r e o r a f t e r 

o r d e r e d p a i d b y t h e b o a r d , s h a l l n o t b e a s s i g n a b l e o r s u b j e c t t o c o u n t e r c l a i m , r e c o u p m e n t o r s e t 

o f f e x c e p t a s p r o v i d e d i n t h i s s e c t i o n , n o r s h a l l i t b e s u b j e c t t o a s s e s s m e n t , g a r n i s h m e n t , 

e x e c u t i o n , i n j u n c t i o n , o r a n y o t h e r d e c r e e , o r d e r , p r o c e s s , o r p r o c e e d i n g i n a n y c o u r t f o r t h e 

p a y m e n t o f a n y d e b t o f a n y b e n e f i c i a r y , a n d t h e s u m s h a l l b e h e l d a n d d i s t r i b u t e d f o r t h e p u r p o s e 

o f t h i s a r t i c l e a n d f o r n o o t h e r p u r p o s e w h a t e v e r . E f f e c t i v e p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , t h e p r e c e d i n g 

s e n t e n c e s h a l l n o t a p p l y t o a q u a l i f i e d d o m e s t i c r e l a t i o n s o r d e r a s d e f i n e d i n s e c t i o n 4 1 4 ( p ) o f 

t h e I n t e r n a l R e v e n u e C o d e ,   2 6   U S C 4 1 4 ( p ) , e x c e p t t h a t n o a m o u n t s h a l l b e p a y a b l e t o a n 

a l t e r n a t e p a y e e p u r s u a n t t o a q u a l i f i e d d o m e s t i c r e l a t i o n s o r d e r p r i o r t o t h e d a t e o n w h i c h a n 

a m o u n t i s p a y a b l e t o t h e e m p l o y e e u n d e r s u c h o r d e r . E f f e c t i v e o n a n d a f t e r J a n u a r y 1 , 2 0 1 1 , t h e 

r u l e s a n d r e g u l a t i o n s e s t a b l i s h e d b y t h e b o a r d w i l l g o v e r n a n y d i s t r i b u t i o n t o b e m a d e p u r s u a n t 

t o a q u a l i f i e d d o m e s t i c r e l a t i o n s o r d e r a s d e f i n e d i n s e c t i o n 4 1 4 ( p ) o f t h e I n t e r n a l R e v e n u e 

C o d e ,   2 6   U S C   4 1 4 ( p ) . 

Sec. 2-221. - Penalty for false statements, etc.

A n y p e r s o n w h o s h a l l k n o w i n g l y , o r w i l l f u l l y , m a k e a n y f a l s e s t a t e m e n t i n r e g a r d t o a p p l y i n g 

f o r o r s e c u r i n g a p e n s i o n u n d e r t h i s a r t i c l e , o r s h a l l f a l s i f y o r p e r m i t t o b e f a l s i f i e d , a n y r e c o r d 

o r r e c o r d s k e p t u n d e r o r i n p u r s u i t o f t h e p u r p o s e s o f t h i s a r t i c l e , i n a n y a t t e m p t t o d e f r a u d , s h a l l 

https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-209MAEMCO
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-209MAEMCO
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH26HESA
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH26HESA


8

a s a r e s u l t o f s u c h a c t , a n d i n a d d i t i o n t o a n y o t h e r p e n a l t i e s i m p o s e d b y t h i s C o d e , f o r f e i t a l l h i s 

r i g h t s ,   i n t e r e s t s   a n d   p r i v i l e g e s   u n d e r   t h i s   a r t i c l e . 

Sec. 2-222. - Special adjustments and benefits payable to present retirees.

( a ) A l l i n d i v i d u a l s w h o r e t i r e d p r i o r t o J u l y 1 , 1 9 8 7 , s h a l l h a v e t h e i r b e n e f i t s 

i n c r e a s e d b y t w o p e r c e n t t i m e s t h e y e a r s b e t w e e n r e t i r e m e n t a n d J u l y 1 , 1 9 8 8 . I n 

a d d i t i o n , t h e m i n i m u m b e n e f i t i s i n c r e a s e d f r o m $ 1 0 0 . 0 0 p e r m o n t h t o $ 2 5 0 . 0 0 

p e r   m o n t h . 

( b ) A l l i n d i v i d u a l s r e t i r i n g b e f o r e J u l y 1 , 1 9 8 7 , a n d w h o d i d n o t h a v e l o n g e v i t y a n d 

e d u c a t i o n a l b o n u s e s c r e d i t e d a s p a r t o f t h e i r b a s e p a y s h a l l r e c e i v e s u c h c r e d i t 

r e t r o a c t i v e   t o   J u l y   1 ,   1 9 8 5 . 

( c ) A l l p a r t i c i p a n t s i n t h e f u n d w h o r e t i r e d o r d i s c o n t i n u e d s e r v i c e p r i o r t o J a n u a r y 

1 , 2 0 1 1 a n d w h o ( o r w h o s e s u r v i v i n g s p o u s e o r b e n e f i c i a r i e s ) a r e s t i l l r e c e i v i n g a 

m o n t h l y b e n e f i t f r o m t h e f u n d , s h a l l h a v e t h e i r m o n t h l y b e n e f i t i n c r e a s e d b y f i v e 

p e r c e n t ( 5 % ) , e f f e c t i v e f o r e a c h m o n t h l y b e n e f i t p a y a b l e o n a n d a f t e r D e c e m b e r 

1 , 2 0 2 1 . T h i s i n c r e a s e w i l l b e a d m i n i s t e r e d b y M i s s o u r i L o c a l G o v e r n m e n t 

E m p l o y e e s   R e t i r e m e n t   S y s t e m   o n   a n d   a f t e r   A p r i l   1 ,   2 0 2 2 . 

Sec. 2-223. - Latest date of payment.

( a ) N o t w i t h s t a n d i n g a n y t h i n g t o t h e c o n t r a r y i n t h i s a r t i c l e , a n d n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g a n y 

e l e c t i o n o f t h e e m p l o y e e , p a y m e n t o f b e n e f i t s p u r s u a n t t o   s e c t i o n 2 - 2 1 3   s h a l l 

c o m m e n c e n o l a t e r t h a n t h e e m p l o y e e ’ s r e q u i r e d b e g i n n i n g d a t e . T h e “ r e q u i r e d 

b e g i n n i n g d a t e ” i s A p r i l 1 o f t h e c a l e n d a r y e a r f o l l o w i n g t h e c a l e n d a r y e a r i n 

w h i c h   t h e   e m p l o y e e   a t t a i n s   7 0 ½   y e a r s   o f   a g e . 

( b ) S e c t i o n 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 9 ) ( 2 6 U S C 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 9 ) ) o f t h e I n t e r n a l R e v e n u e C o d e ,   2 6   U S C 1 e t 

s e q . ( t h e “ I R S C o d e ” ) , i s h e r e b y i n c o r p o r a t e d b y r e f e r e n c e , a n d d i s t r i b u t i o n s 

u n d e r t h i s p l a n p u r s u a n t t o   s e c t i o n 2 - 2 1 3   s h a l l b e m a d e i n a c c o r d a n c e w i t h s u c h 

s e c t i o n a n d t h e r e g u l a t i o n s i s s u e d b y t h e s e c r e t a r y o f t h e t r e a s u r y i n t e r p r e t i n g s u c h 

s e c t i o n . P r o v i s i o n s r e f l e c t i n g I R S C o d e s e c t i o n 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 9 ) ( 2 6 U S C 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 9 ) ) 

s h a l l o v e r r i d e a n y o t h e r d i s t r i b u t i o n o p t i o n s t h a t m a y b e i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h s u c h 

I R S C o d e s e c t i o n a n d t h i s s e c t i o n . A n y d i s t r i b u t i o n s r e q u i r e d u n d e r t h e i n c i d e n t a l 

d e a t h b e n e f i t r e q u i r e m e n t s o f I R S C o d e s e c t i o n 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 2 6 U S C 4 0 1 ( a ) ) s h a l l b e 

t r e a t e d a s d i s t r i b u t i o n s r e q u i r e d u n d e r I R S C o d e s e c t i o n 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 9 ) ( 2 6 U S C 

4 0 1 ( a ) ( 9 ) )   a n d   t h i s   s e c t i o n . 

Sec. 2-224. - Limitation on compensation.

( a ) I n a d d i t i o n t o a n y o t h e r a p p l i c a b l e l i m i t a t i o n s s e t f o r t h i n t h i s a r t i c l e , a n d 

n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g a n y o t h e r p r o v i s i o n o f t h i s a r t i c l e t o t h e c o n t r a r y , f o r f i s c a l y e a r s 

o f t h e f u n d ( “ p l a n y e a r s ” ) b e g i n n i n g a f t e r 1 9 9 4 , t h e a n n u a l e a r n i n g s o f e a c h 

https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-213PEAMPPRE
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH26HESA
https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTIVPOFIREFU_S2-213PEAMPPRE


9

e m p l o y e e t a k e n i n t o a c c o u n t s h a l l n o t e x c e e d $ 1 5 0 , 0 0 0 . 0 0 , a s a d j u s t e d b y t h e 

c o m m i s s i o n e r o f i n t e r n a l r e v e n u e f o r i n c r e a s e s i n t h e c o s t o f l i v i n g i n a c c o r d a n c e 

w i t h s e c t i o n 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 1 7 ) ( B ) o f t h e I R S C o d e ( 2 6 U S C 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 1 7 ) ( B ) ) . T h e c o s t - 

o f - l i v i n g a d j u s t m e n t i n e f f e c t f o r a c a l e n d a r y e a r a p p l i e s t o a n y p e r i o d , n o t 

e x c e e d i n g 1 2 m o n t h s , o v e r w h i c h e a r n i n g s i s d e t e r m i n e d ( “ d e t e r m i n a t i o n p e r i o d 

” ) b e g i n n i n g i n s u c h c a l e n d a r y e a r . I f a d e t e r m i n a t i o n p e r i o d c o n s i s t s o f f e w e r 

t h a n 1 2 m o n t h s , s u c h c o m p e n s a t i o n l i m i t w i l l b e m u l t i p l i e d b y a f r a c t i o n , t h e 

n u m e r a t o r o f w h i c h i s t h e n u m b e r o f m o n t h s i n t h e d e t e r m i n a t i o n p e r i o d , a n d t h e 

d e n o m i n a t o r   o f   w h i c h   i s   1 2 . 

( b ) F o r p l a n y e a r s b e g i n n i n g a f t e r 1 9 9 4 , a n y r e f e r e n c e i n t h i s p l a n t o t h e l i m i t a t i o n 

u n d e r s e c t i o n 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 1 7 ) o f t h e I R S C o d e ( 2 6 U S C 4 0 1 ( a ) ( 1 7 ) ) s h a l l m e a n t h e 

a n n u a l   c o m p e n s a t i o n   l i m i t   s e t   f o r t h   i n   t h i s   s e c t i o n . 

( c ) I f c o m p e n s a t i o n f o r a n y p r i o r d e t e r m i n a t i o n p e r i o d i s t a k e n i n t o a c c o u n t i n 

d e t e r m i n i n g a n e m p l o y e e ’ s b e n e f i t s a c c r u i n g i n t h e c u r r e n t p l a n y e a r , t h e e a r n i n g s 

f o r t h a t p r i o r d e t e r m i n a t i o n p e r i o d a r e s u b j e c t t o s u c h a n n u a l c o m p e n s a t i o n l i m i t 

i n e f f e c t f o r t h a t p r i o r d e t e r m i n a t i o n p e r i o d . F o r t h i s p u r p o s e , f o r d e t e r m i n a t i o n 

p e r i o d s b e g i n n i n g b e f o r e t h e f i r s t d a y o f t h e f i r s t p l a n y e a r b e g i n n i n g a f t e r 1 9 9 4 , 

s u c h   a n n u a l   c o m p e n s a t i o n   l i m i t   i s   $ 1 5 0 , 0 0 0 . 0 0 . 

Sec. 2-225. - Limitation on benefits.

E f f e c t i v e M a y 9 , 1 9 9 5 , i n n o e v e n t s h a l l t h e a n n u a l b e n e f i t u n d e r t h i s a r t i c l e a n d a l l o t h e r d e f i n e d 

b e n e f i t s p l a n s m a i n t a i n e d b y t h e c i t y e x c e e d t h e a m o u n t s p e c i f i e d i n s e c t i o n 4 1 5 ( b ) ( 1 ) ( A ) o f t h e 

I R S C o d e ( 2 6 U S C 4 1 5 ( b ) ( 1 ) ( A ) ) , a s a d j u s t e d f o r a n y a p p l i c a b l e i n c r e a s e s i n t h e c o s t o f l i v i n g 

i n a c c o r d a n c e w i t h s e c t i o n 4 1 5 ( d ) o f t h e I R S C o d e ( 2 6 U S C 4 1 5 ( d ) ) , a s i n e f f e c t o n t h e l a s t d a y 

o f   t h e   p l a n   y e a r . 

Sec. 2-226. - Amendment and termination.

( a ) P r i o r t o A p r i l 1 , 2 0 2 2 , t h e c i t y r e s e r v e s t h e r i g h t a t a n y t i m e a n d f r o m t i m e t o 

t i m e t o m o d i f y o r a m e n d t h e p l a n i n w h o l e o r i n p a r t ; p r o v i d e d t h a t n o s u c h 

m o d i f i c a t i o n s o r a m e n d m e n t s s h a l l d e c r e a s e t h e b e n e f i t o f a n y e m p l o y e e s e n t i t l e d 

t o b e n e f i t s h e r e u n d e r o r t h e i r b e n e f i c i a r i e s a c c r u e d t o t h e d a t e o f s u c h a n 

a m e n d m e n t , e x c e p t t o t h e e x t e n t n e c e s s a r y t o m a i n t a i n t h e q u a l i f i e d s t a t u s o f t h e 

p l a n ; a n d p r o v i d e d f u r t h e r t h a t t h e d u t i e s o r l i a b i l i t i e s o f t h e b o a r d s h a l l n o t b e 

i n c r e a s e d   w i t h o u t   i t s   c o n s e n t . 

( b ) P r i o r t o A p r i l 1 , 2 0 2 2 , t h e c i t y r e s e r v e s t h e r i g h t a t a n y t i m e t o t e r m i n a t e t h e p l a n 

i n i t s e n t i r e t y o r o n l y w i t h r e s p e c t t o a p o r t i o n o f t h e f u n d . A l l a c c r u e d b e n e f i t s t o 

t h e e x t e n t t h e n f u n d e d s h a l l v e s t a s o f t h e e f f e c t i v e d a t e o f t h e t e r m i n a t i o n o f t h e 

p l a n , a n d t h e r e s h a l l b e n o f o r f e i t u r e s t h e r e a f t e r . I n t h e e v e n t o f a p a r t i a l 

t e r m i n a t i o n , a l l r i g h t s t o b e n e f i t s w i t h r e s p e c t t o w h i c h t h e p l a n t e r m i n a t e d t o t h e 

e x t e n t t h e n f u n d e d s h a l l b e f u l l y v e s t e d a n d n o n f o r f e i t a b l e a s o f t h e d a t e o f s u c h 

p a r t i a l t e r m i n a t i o n . I n t h e e v e n t o f c o m p l e t e t e r m i n a t i o n o f t h i s p l a n , a n a c t u a r i a l 



10

v a l u a t i o n s h a l l b e m a d e . T h e f u n d s i n t h e f u n d s h a l l b e a l l o c a t e d o n a n a c t u a r i a l 

b a s i s t o p a y t h e b e n e f i t s i n t h e o r d e r a n d i n t h e m a n n e r p r o v i d e d b y s e c t i o n 4 0 4 4 

o f E R I S A ( E m p l o y e e R e t i r e m e n t I n c o m e S e c u r i t y A c t o f 1 9 7 4 

( “ E R I S A ” ) ,   2 9   U S C 1 0 0 1 — 1 4 6 1 ) w i t h n o s u b c l a s s a n d c a t e g o r i e s w i t h i n t h e 

c l a s s e s d e s c r i b e d t h e r e i n . A l l a s s e t s i n t h e f u n d t h a t a r e n o t n e e d e d t o s a t i s f y i n 

f u l l t h e a c c r u e d b e n e f i t s o f t h e e m p l o y e e s e n t i t l e d t o b e n e f i t s h e r e u n d e r o r t h e i r 

b e n e f i c i a r i e s   a t   t h e   t i m e   o f   s u c h   a   t e r m i n a t i o n   s h a l l   r e v e r t   t o   t h e   c i t y . 

( c ) E f f e c t i v e o n a n d a f t e r A p r i l 1 , 2 0 2 2 , n o a m e n d m e n t s o r t e r m i n a t i o n w i l l b e 

a l l o w e d a f t e r t h e M i s s o u r i L o c a l G o v e r n m e n t E m p l o y e e s R e t i r e m e n t S y s t e m 

a s s u m e s a d m i n i s t r a t i v e c o n t r o l , o t h e r t h a n a m e n d m e n t s r e q u i r e d t o c o m p l y w i t h 

a p p l i c a b l e l a w s o r a p p r o v e d b y t h e c i t y a n d t h e M i s s o u r i L o c a l G o v e r n m e n t 

E m p l o y e e s R e t i r e m e n t S y s t e m ; p r o v i d e d , h o w e v e r , t h a t t h e c i t y r e s e r v e s t h e r i g h t 

a t a n y t i m e t o u n i l a t e r a l l y a m e n d o r t e r m i n a t e t h e p r o v i s i o n s o f t h i s A r t i c l e 

r e l a t i n g t o t h e t r u s t o r t h e a m o u n t o f t a x l e v i e d , i n c l u d i n g , b u t n o t l i m i t e d t o , 

s e c t i o n   2 - 2 0 6 ( b )   a n d   s e c t i o n   2 - 2 1 1 .   

Sec. 2-227. - Military service.

E f f e c t i v e M a y 9 , 1 9 9 5 , n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g a n y p r o v i s i o n o f t h i s p l a n t o t h e c o n t r a r y , c o n t r i b u t i o n s , 

b e n e f i t s a n d s e r v i c e c r e d i t w i t h r e s p e c t t o q u a l i f i e d m i l i t a r y s e r v i c e w i l l b e p r o v i d e d i n 

a c c o r d a n c e   w i t h   I R S   C o d e   s e c t i o n   4 1 4 ( u )   ( 2 6   U S C   4 1 4 ( u ) ) . 

Secs. 2-228—2-247. - Reserved.

Section II. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 

and approval as provided by law. 

Passed this 22 nd  day of February, 2022 

 ______________________________

Nikylan Knapper, Mayor

Attest:

_______________________________

Karen Scheidt, Deputy City Clerk 

Approved this 22 nd  day of February, 2022.

 _______________________________

Nikylan Knapper, Mayor

Attest:

________________________________

Karen Scheidt, Deputy City Clerk

https://library.municode.com/mo/maplewood/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH29RE


 R E S O L U T I O N     R24- 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, 
MISSOURI, REQUESTING AN ASSESSMENT OF INVESTMENT FUNDS REMAINING 
FROM THE CITY’S DISSOLVED POLICE AND FIRE PENSION TRUST FUND 
 

WHEREAS, in 2011, all active public safety employees of the City of Maplewood were 
brought into the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) pension 
system, making the City’s self-administered Police and Fire Pension inactive; and 

 
WHEREAS, administration of the inactive Police and Fire Pension plan was moved to 

LAGERS in 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, assets from the existing Police and Fire Pension Trust account were 

transferred to LAGERS in 2022 to meet and improve benefits received by retirees and their 
beneficiaries; and   

 
WHEREAS, assets from the Trust that remained after the transfer of funds to LAGERS 

were invested by the City. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:  
 
 The City Council of the City of Maplewood directs the City Manager to obtain expert 
guidance to evaluate investment of the current assets to determine the most prudent allocation of 
remaining Police and Fire Pension Trust assets to meet Police and Fire pension obligations covered 
under the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS).  
 
Passed this 9th day of April, 2024. 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
  ______________________________________ 
  Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
Approved this 9th day of April, 2024. 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
  ______________________________________ 
  Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 
 



INTEROFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Amber Withycombe, City Manager 
 
FROM: Lexie Miller, Director of Finance   
 
DATE: April 1, 2024 
 
RE: Ordinance to Close Cambridge Commons TIF  
 
 
Enclosed for the Council Meeting on April 9, 2024, is an ordinance to close the Cambridge 
Commons TIF. TIF stands for Tax Increment Financing. It’s a way for cities to fund 
development projects in certain areas. Essentially, it uses future increases in taxes generated by a 
development to finance the costs of that development upfront. For this particular project, the old 
Bruce School property was purchased and developed into single-family attached homes. There 
were only property taxes associated with this project since there was no retail developed on this 
property. 
 
Back in May 2023, it was found that there was enough money available to pay off the bonds 
associated with the Cambridge Commons project. To officially wrap up the TIF and make sure 
the taxes collected within the project area are distributed properly, the City needs to pass an 
ordinance to close it. 
 
Once the ordinance is passed, the City will inform the Collector of Revenue for St. Louis County 
about the payment of the TIF. Then, the funds collected will be redistributed according to the 
appropriate taxing districts. 
 
It’s worth noting that the City has a habit of paying off its TIFs early. So, this isn’t an unusual 
practice for the City.  



 
 

BILL NO. ORDINANCE NO.   
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, 
MISSOURI, TERMINATING TAX INCREMENT FINANCING WITHIN THE CAMBRIDGE 
COMMONS REDEVELOPMENT AREA; DISSOLVING THE SPECIAL ALLOCATION 
FUND (CAMBRIDGE COMMONS REDEVELOPMENT); AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
OTHER ACTIONS RELATING THERETO. 
 

WHEREAS, the Real Property Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, Sections 
99.800 to 99.865 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the “Act”), authorizes 
municipalities to provide for the redevelopment of blighted, conservation or economic 
development areas, each as defined in the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 8, 2005, the City Council of the City of Maplewood, Missouri (the 
“City”) adopted Ordinance No. 5248 approving the “Cambridge Commons Tax Increment 
Financing Redevelopment Plan, Maplewood, Missouri (the “Redevelopment Plan”) pursuant to 
the Act, designating the redevelopment area described therein (the “Redevelopment Area”) as a 
“redevelopment area” under the Act, approving the redevelopment project described in the 
Redevelopment Plan (the “Redevelopment Project”), adopting tax increment financing within the 
Redevelopment Area, and establishing the Special Allocation Fund (Cambridge Commons 
Redevelopment) (the “Special Allocation Fund”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has issued obligations to finance the Redevelopment Project for 
which payment of principal and interest is required to be paid from certain funds generated in the 
Redevelopment Area pursuant to the Act (the “TIF Obligations”), all of which have been paid in 
full; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that the Redevelopment Project and goals 

contained in the Redevelopment Plan have been completed and hereby further finds it desirable 
and in the best interests of the City and its inhabitants, and the other affected taxing jurisdictions, 
to (a) dissolve the Special Obligation Fund and terminate tax increment financing within the 
Redevelopment Area, and (b) provide for the termination of and transfer of funds from the Special 
Allocation Fund, all as provided herein.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section I. The City Council hereby terminates tax increment financing within the 
Redevelopment Area. 

 
Section II.      

 
(a) Pursuant to the Trust Indenture, dated as of April 1, 2011 (the “Indenture”), 

executed by the City and UMB Bank, N.A. (as successor trustee to Carrollton Bank) (the 
“Trustee”), as trustee for the TIF Obligations, upon the payment in full of the principal of and 
interest on the TIF Obligations and the fees, charges and expenses of the Trustee and any Paying 



 
 

Agents, and any other amounts required to be paid under the Indenture, all amounts remaining on 
deposit in the PILOTS Account of the Revenue Fund and the EATS Account of the Revenue Fund 
shall be paid to the City for deposit into the Special Allocation Fund.  Upon the City’s receipt of 
funds from the Trustee, the City’s Director of Finance or other appropriate official is authorized 
and directed to deposit and apply said funds as follows: 

 
(i) any remaining moneys received by the City from moneys on deposit in the 

PILOTS Account of the Revenue Fund shall be deposited into the PILOTS Account of the 
Special Allocation Fund; and 

 
(ii) any remaining moneys received by the City from moneys on deposit in the 

EATS Account of the Revenue Fund shall be deposited into the EATS Account of the 
Special Allocation Fund. 

 
(b) The City’s Director of Finance or other appropriate official is authorized and 

directed, following the receipt and application of funds as set forth in subsection (2)(a) hereof, to 
withdraw and transfer from the Special Allocation Fund all amounts remaining in such fund, less 
an amount sufficient to pay any final administrative and/or dissolution expenses related thereto 
(including any amount required to pay rebate, if any, to the United States of America, owed under 
Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the costs of calculating such 
amount) and the City’s budget for the current fiscal year is hereby amended, as follows: 

(i) all funds on deposit in the EATS Account of the Special Allocation Fund 
are hereby declared surplus and shall be distributed by the City’s Director of Finance or 
other appropriate official to the taxing districts in the Redevelopment Area in the same 
proportion as generated by the sales taxes levied by such taxing districts as provided in 
Section 99.820 of the Act; and 

(ii) following the transfer of funds as set forth in subsection (2)(b)(1) hereof, all 
remaining funds in the Special Allocation Fund shall be transferred to the St. Louis County 
Collector or other appropriate office for distribution to the appropriate taxing districts in 
the manner provided in the Act.  
 
(c) Upon the distribution of funds as provided above, the City’s Director of Finance or 

other appropriate official is hereby directed to dissolve the Special Allocation Fund. 
 
 Section III.   The officers, agents and employees of the City are hereby authorized and 
directed to execute all documents and take such necessary steps as they deem necessary and 
advisable to carry out and perform the purpose of this Ordinance. 
 

Section IV.   The sections of this Ordinance shall be severable.  If any section of this 
Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining sections shall 
remain valid, unless the court finds that the valid sections are so essential to and inseparably 
connected with and dependent upon the void section that it cannot be presumed that the City 
Council has or would have enacted the valid sections without the void ones, unless the court finds 
that the valid sections, standing alone, are incomplete and are incapable of being executed in 
accordance with the legislative intent. 



 
 

 
Section V. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect fifteen (15) days after its 

passage and approval. 
 
 
Passed this ___ day of April, 2024. 
 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
Passed this ___ day of April, 2024. 
 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  Nikylan Knapper, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 
 



BILL NO. 6249                                          ORDINANCE NO. 6043 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, 
AMENDING THE MAPLEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 50 – TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, ARTICLE III. – ADDITIONAL TRAFFIC REGULATIONS, TO ADD A 
NEW SECTION 50-96, PEDESTRIANS’ RIGHT-OF-WAY IN CROSSWALKS  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Maplewood has received numerous complaints of motorist not 
yielding to pedestrians utilizing crosswalks; and 

 
WHEREAS, Maplewood’s current traffic code does not specifically address pedestrians’ 

right-of-way within crosswalks; current citations are cited via the previously adopted Model 
Traffic Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendment will make it easier for Maplewood police officers 

to enforce violations of motorists who fail to yield to pedestrians within crosswalks; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the proposed amendment to the Maplewood 

Code of Ordinances on April 9, 2024. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MAPLEWOOD, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section I. A new Section 50-96 is hereby added to Chapter 50 –Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, Article III. – Additional Traffic Regulations, as follows:    

 
 Sec. 50-96 – Pedestrians’ Right-of-Way in Crosswalks. 
 

(a) When traffic control signals are not in place or not in operation, the driver of a vehicle 
shall yield the right-of-way, slowing down or stopping if need be to so yield to a 
pedestrian crossing the roadway within a crosswalk when the pedestrian is upon the 
half of the roadway upon which the vehicle is traveling, or when the pedestrian is 
approaching so closely from the opposite half of the roadway as to be in danger. 
 

(b) No pedestrian shall suddenly leave a curb or other place of safety and walk or run into 
the path of a vehicle which is so close that it is impossible for the driver to yield. 

 
(c) Whenever any vehicle is stopped at a marked crosswalk or at any unmarked crosswalk 

at an intersection to permit a pedestrian to cross the roadway, the driver of any other 
vehicle approaching from the rear shall not overtake and pass such stopped vehicle.  

 
Section II. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect fifteen (15) days after its 

passage and approval.   
 
 
 
 



Passed this 9th day of April, 2024 
 
 

______________________________ 
Nikylan Knapper, Mayor  

 
Attest: 

______________________________ 
Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 

 
 
 
Approved this 9th day of April, 2024 
 
 

______________________________ 
Nikylan Knapper, Mayor  

 
Attest: 

______________________________ 
Anthony Traxler, Deputy City Clerk 

 


	0 - 4-9-2024 Council agenda
	1 - Crosswalk Ordinance Public Hearing 03.24
	2 - 3-26-2024min
	3 - CM Report 4-9-24
	4 - 2024 SBD Report to Council
	5 - Public Safety Cameras Upgrade
	6 - Public Safety Cameras Proposal
	7 - Public Safety Camera resolution
	8 - Central Park Playground Replace 2024 Memo
	9 - 230802 Play Equipment Option 1 Resized
	10 - Central Park Playground Replace 2024 Resolution
	11 - MFAC Filter 2024 Memo
	12 - MFAC Filter 2024 Resolution
	13 - Garage Windows 2024 Memo
	14 - Garage Windows 2024 Resolution
	15 - Police and Fire pension memo
	16 - Memo and minutes for police and fire pension ordinance 5976
	17 - Police and Fire resolution 5976 - 2022
	18 - Police and Fire pension resolution v2
	18 - Police and Fire pension resolution
	19 - Cambridge Commons TIF Close Out Memo
	20 - Maplewood - ORD TIF Termination (Cambridge Commons)
	(i) all funds on deposit in the EATS Account of the Special Allocation Fund are hereby declared surplus and shall be distributed by the City’s Director of Finance or other appropriate official to the taxing districts in the Redevelopment Area in the s...
	(ii) following the transfer of funds as set forth in subsection (2)(b)(1) hereof, all remaining funds in the Special Allocation Fund shall be transferred to the St. Louis County Collector or other appropriate office for distribution to the appropriate...

	21 - Crosswalk Ordinance 03.24



